Safer and Stronger Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date

Friday 22 March 2019

Time

9.30 am

Venue

Committee Room 2 - County Hall, Durham

Business
Part A
Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend. Members
of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman's agreement.
1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Substitute Members

3.

Minutes of the meeting held 14 February 2019 (Pages 3 - 12)

4.

Declarations of Interest, if any

5.

Any items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties

6.

Media Relations

7.

Organised Crime: (Pages 13 - 24)
(i) Report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships.
(ii) Presentation by Superintendent Kevin Weir, Durham Constabulary.

8.

Schools 20 mph Part-Time Speed Limits Project: (Pages 25 - 52)
(i) Report of the Corporate Director of Regeneration and Local Services.
(ii) Presentation by the Head of Technical Services and the Traffic and
Streetworks Manager, Regeneration and Local Services.

9.

Quarter Three 2018/19 Performance Report: (Pages 53 - 70)
Report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships.

10.

Refresh of the Work Programme: (Pages 71 - 84)
Report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships.

11.

Overview and Scrutiny Review Update:
Verbal Update by Jonathan Slee, Overview and Scrutiny Officer.

12.

Police and Crime Panel:
Verbal Update by Jonathan Slee, Overview and Scrutiny Officer.

13.

Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, is of
sufficient urgency to warrant consideration

Helen Lynch
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

County Hall
Durham
14 March 2019

To:

The Members of the Safer and Stronger Communities Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Councillor D Boyes (Chairman)
Councillor H Liddle (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors B Avery, A Bainbridge, J Charlton, J Considine, R Crute, S Durham,
D Hall, C Hampson, S Iveson, L Kennedy, J Maitland, E Mavin, J Nicholson,
A Patterson, J Stephenson, D Stoker, K Thompson, J Turnbull and C Wilson
Co-opted Members: Mr D Balls and Mr A J Cooke
Co-opted Employees/Officers: Chief Fire Officer S Errington and
Chief Superintendent A Green

Contact: Martin Tindle

Tel: 03000 269 713

Agenda Item 3
DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL
SAFER AND STRONGER COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
At a Meeting of Safer and Stronger Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee
held in Committee Room 2 - County Hall, Durham on Thursday 14 February 2019 at
9.30 am
Present:
Councillor D Boyes (Chairman)
Members of the Committee:
Councillors B Avery, A Bainbridge, J Charlton, J Considine, R Crute, C Hampson,
S Iveson, H Liddle, A Patterson, J Stephenson, D Stoker, J Turnbull and C Wilson
Co-opted Members:
Mr D Balls
Co-opted Employees/Officers:
Chief Superintendent A Green
1

Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors D Hall, L Kennedy, J Maitland,
E Mavin, J Nicholson and Mr A J Cooke.
2

Substitute Members

There were no Substitute Members.
3

Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held 7 January 2019 were agreed as a correct records and
signed by the Chairman.
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer, Jonathan Slee noted that in respect of items discussed
at the meeting: the contact number for the Drug and Alcohol Service was circulated to
Members; a response on behalf of the Committee in relation to the County Durham and
Darlington Fire and Rescue Service’s (CDDFRS) Integrated Risk Management Plan
consultation was sent to the Fire Service; and comments in relation to road casualty
reduction had been fed back to the Strategic Traffic Manager, Dave Wafer.
4

Declarations of Interest

There were no Declarations of Interest.
Page 3

5

Any items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties

There were no items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties.
6

Media Relations

The Overview and Scrutiny Officer referred Members to the recent prominent articles and
news stories relating to the remit of the Safer and Stronger Communities Overview and
Scrutiny Committee (for copy see file of minutes).
The articles included: Operation Sentinel, a Police operation led by the North East Special
Operations Unit (NESOU) regarding cease and desist activities relating to those
purchasing tools used in cybercrime, setting out the risks and demonstrating to those
individuals the positive uses of such skills; millions of fake cigarettes being seized across
the UK, with mention of the work undertaken in Durham by the Consumer Protection
Team.
Resolved:
That the presentation be noted.
7

Consumer Protection - Enforcement Activity

The Chairman introduced the Council’s Consumer Protection Manager, Owen Cleugh to
give a presentation on Consumer Protection – Enforcement Activity (for copy see file of
minutes).
The Consumer Protection Manager reminded Members that it had been one year since a
restructure from previous arrangements that had Trading Standards and Licencing Issues
to that of: Business Compliance; Special Investigations; Licensing Enforcement and
Licensing Administration. It was noted that all teams were supported by an Intelligence
and Information Team.
Members were asked to note national and local priorities included: doorstep crime;
counterfeit goods; underage sales; illicit tobacco and alcohol; scams; and general fair
trading issues.
Members noted in relation to doorstep crime examples were given in relation to dangerous
and sub-standard structures in the County and learned as regards the types of activities
related to doorstep crime, including home improvements; driveway installation and roofing
amongst others. The Consumer Protection Manager added as regards help offered to
victims of such crime; staff being trained in interview techniques; and activities relating to
informing and educating such as an event in Durham in respect to traders and education
and interventions via the Area Action Partnerships (AAPs) and Neighbourhood Wardens.
The Committee noted in relation to counterfeit goods examples as regards a number of
activities prior to Christmas including: fake mobile phone covers; counterfeit designer
goods; and fake electrical items and clothing.

Page 4

It was explained that a new trend was for the sale of such items via hairdressing salons
and barber shops and it was added that more frequently orders were being placed via
social media, with less large quantities of stock being stored in any one location, and that
how to tackle this in conjunction with the social media companies would be important.
Members were reminded of an individual who had been found to be selling fake
“remembrance day poppies”, in contravention of copyright and also that seller had no
connection to the Royal British Legion. The Consumer Protection Manager noted the
individual had been issued with a Community Order.
Councillors noted that in terms of underage sales, there was still an issue and smarter
intelligence was leading to higher failure rates on those premises targeted, proving the
targeting was effective. It was noted there were referrals to Licensing Committee and that
in appropriate cases there would be training packages offer to premises and their staff
from the Police and the Council’s Licensing Team.
In connection to illicit tobacco and alcohol a number of examples of shops where such
sales had taken place were given. It was explained that there had been a number of
sanctions issued: including fines, closure orders and custodial sentences. It was
emphasised that a new area of activity was vaping shops, in relation to age and product
safety, both the liquids and charges used. Members were reminded of the work being in
partnerships with the Police, Public Health and Local Members.
The Consumer Protection Manager noted that in relation to general scams, a recent case
of fraud where two brothers were jailed for operating an internet scam. He added that
scams could be via post, telephone and the internet, not just on the doorstep, and that
there was a national “Friends Against Scams” organisation and that a pilot scheme had
been developed involving three of the AAPs, helping to spread the messages about such
scams and help in terms of community cohesion.
In terms of fair trading, Members were given examples in relation to: an electrician
overcharging for works; car “clocking”, sales of second hand cars with altered mileage
details; and illegal puppy farms, with a multiagency response in terms of looking at issues
of pedigree and animal welfare.
The Consumer Protection Manager noted the statistics in relation to Licensing Committee
hearings, and numbers of applications processed and reiterated the importance of this
work in helping to protect public safety. The work in terms of licensing enforcement was
explained, including drivers of dangerous vehicles where there was a risk to the public,
and suspensions relating to behaviour, convictions or on medical grounds. Members
noted the good work in conjunction with Durham Constabulary that had been carried out
previously in relation to unregistered scrap metal collectors.
The Consumer Protection Manager noted the main risks and challenges faced by
Consumer Protection, namely: the resources to investigate; increasing legal time and
costs; maximising the potential of the Proceeds of Crime Act (POCA); and encouraging
people to come forward with information.
The Chairman thanked the Consumer Protection Manager and asked if having multiple
agencies under one roof at Meadowfield was continuing to prove beneficial.

Page 5

The Consumer Protection Manager noted that this was the case and was proving to work
effectively with a number of Council staff trained and given clearance in appropriate areas
and a “one-team” ethic was important in looking to utilise any method to target those
carrying out the activities as previously described.
The Chairman asked Members for their comments and questions. Councillor C Wilson
referred to the case relating to the electrician, the Consumer Protection Manager noted
that the information was as reported in the press at the time.
The Vice-Chairman, Councillor H Liddle asked if a taxi driver had their Durham licence
revoked, could they go to another Local Authority area, obtain a licence and then operate
in County Durham once again. The Consumer Protection Manager reminded Members of
the changes following deregulation, the harmonisation of standards and a national register.
He explained that if a licence was revoked in Durham, the information would be added to
the register and other Local Authorities could check this. He added there was new
consultation as regards taxi licensing that would be undertaken shortly.
Councillor A Patterson noted the positive successes in terms of enforcement action and
seizures of counterfeit goods. She asked how prevention and educational work was
undertaken, especially in terms of the allure of such items in the context of austerity. The
Consumer Protection Manager explained that the messages of poor quality clothing items,
perfumes that may cause allergic reactions, car parts and electrical goods that were
dangerous were given and it was important to make consumers aware of the risks. He
reiterated the point that social media was being used more and more for this type of
activity. He explained that there was also a focus on not just counterfeit goods, but also in
educating against scams as the victims can often be left facing multiple issues, not only
financial, with some seeing their health and wellbeing affected. Members noted that
organisations such as Neighbourhood Watch were very useful in these instances and in
helping with community cohesion.
Councillor J Charlton asked as regards underage sales and the training being offered,
asking whether this could not be a stipulation at the licence issuing stage. The Consumer
Protection Manager noted that for new applications there was the opportunity for a
Licensing Committee to impose more stringent conditions or training requirements if felt
appropriate in a particular instance.
Councillor J Charlton asked as regards scrap metal dealers and the current position. The
Consumer Protection Manager noted the work that had been undertaken previously, with a
number of prosecutions in relation to collectors and sites. He added that Neighbourhood
Wardens continued to work in helping to identify issues such as fly-tipping and of those
individuals operating without a waste carrier’s licence. He noted that there was a benefit
to the both the public and legitimate waste carriers having increased trust in those
operating within the law.
Resolved:
That the report and presentation be noted.

Page 6

8

Progress of Recommendations following the Overview and Scrutiny Review
of Cybercrime

The Chairman reiterated his thanks to the Vice-Chairman, Councillor H Liddle who had
chaired the scrutiny review in 2017/18 looking at the issue of cybercrime. Councillor H
Liddle explained that upon speaking to young people and professionals it was noted that
many young people perceived cybercrime as a victimless crime and she had hoped that
the review would help highlight that it was not victimless and had the potential to impact on
many people’s lives. She also thanked all the Officers involved for their hard work.
The Chairman asked the Strategic Manager – Partnerships, Andrea Petty to speak to
Members as regards an update in relation to the recommendations from the review.
The Strategic Manager – Partnerships noted that there had been a number of areas of
activity, including: an awareness video created by New College Durham students in
relation to cybercrime; the Portfolio Holder, Councillor J Allen speaking at the Local
Government Association Conference as regards the work undertaken in County Durham,
with a number of other Local Authorities having taken a keen interest.
Councillors noted the partners involved in the work carried out in Durham included Durham
Constabulary, the North East Serious Operations Unit (NESOU), the University of
Sunderland and the Safe Durham Partnership (SDP), more specifically the now
established Safer Cyber Task Group. Members were reminded that within the Scrutiny
Review, the was a focus session held with Police Cadets, helping to get a perspective
from young people as regards how cybercrime was perceived.
The Strategic Manager – Partnerships referred Members to appendix two to the report
setting out an update of progress against each of the recommendations from the Scrutiny
Review. In relation to the prevention of people becoming cybercrime offenders being an
action of the SDP, this led to the creation of the Safer Cyber Task Group with an
associated Action Plan. Members also noted a number of activities in relation to this
including: awareness raising via the NESOU and Watersons; community based initiatives
involving the Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner (PCVC), Durham Constabulary and
AAPs; and utilising existing events and roadshows, such as BikeWise to help spread
messages in relation to staying safe online.
Councillors noted the recommendation in terms of further focus sessions with Police
Cadets and young people and added an initial session with Cadets and their parents had
taken place and that further work was ongoing to develop a comprehensive programme in
conjunction with the Cadets.
The Strategic Manager – Partnerships explained in terms of the third recommendation
from the review, relating to research that had been conducted by the University of Bath
looking at any potential links between autism and cybercrime, following enquires with the
university as regards a final report, no further information had been forthcoming.
Members noted the work ongoing in terms of recommendation four, with Children and
Young People’s Services taking an active role in helping keep the young people of County
Durham safe, working with teachers and young people.

Page 7

It was noted that the Council were working with New College Durham to develop a new
resource for use in schools, as well as the wider community, to promote a better
understanding of the issues and highlight the consequences of hacking and potential
benefits of pursuing a positive career utilising those types of computing skills.
In terms of the fifth recommendation from the Review, the Strategic Manager –
Partnerships explained that the issue of cybercrime and cyber safety had been added to
the Safety Carousel events at secondary schools and in the work of The Prince’s Trust.
Members were reminded of the sixth recommendation relating to the production of a video
resource that could be shown, in conjunction with the resource made available by the
National Crime Agency, to highlight to young people the risks associated with cybercrime.
It was explained that work with New College Durham students, supported by the Children
and Young People’s Service, the Council’s Partnerships Team, Overview and Scrutiny and
Durham Constabulary had resulted in a draft script which contained both positive and
negative endings. It was added that production would begin and a launch event was
anticipated for April 2019.
The Strategic Manager – Partnerships noted that the seventh recommendation of the
Review Group had been in reference to exploring opportunities for apprenticeships in
IT/Cybersecurity. It was noted that that six IT apprentices had been taken on by the
Council, with one specialising in cyber security and that apprentice having given a very
inspirational presentation to the SDP Safer Cyber Task Group.
The Chairman thanked the Strategic Manager – Partnerships and asked Members for their
comments and questions.
Councillor D Stoker asked as regards further information in terms of the lack of response
from the University of Bath. The Strategic Manager – Partnerships noted several attempts
had been made to contact the University and the relevant staff with no response.
Councillor J Charlton asked if cybercrime would be an item that would remain on the
agenda for the Committee. The Chairman noted that it would, with the review having
shown that the was a need to help divert young people away from the negative aspects
that such skills could lead to, and to help focus on highlighting the opportunities for people
with those skills to become successful.
Councillor J Turnbull noted he had attended one of the “business breakfasts” organised as
regards cybercrime and highlighted that it had been very positive, with a good deal of
valuable information for Members.
The Chairman concluded by noting the positive outcomes of this review activity led by Cllr
Liddle and the Committee and gave commendation to the Overview and Scrutiny Officer
for his work in supporting the Committee with this review.
Resolved:
(i)
(ii)

That the report be noted.
That a progress report on development of recommendations from the review be
included within the Committee’s work programme.

Page 8

9

Progress of Recommendations following the Overview and Scrutiny Review
of Home Safety - Safe and Wellbeing Visits

The Chairman introduced the Strategic Manager – Public Health, Chris Woodcock to
speak in relation to the Overview and Scrutiny Review of Home Safety – Safe and
Wellbeing Visits (for copy see file of minutes).
The Strategic Manager – Public Health reminded the Committee of the review undertaken
in conjunction with the CDDFRS and Public Health in terms of Safe and Wellbeing Visits
(SWVs) and noted that the evaluation that had been completed by the Teesside University
on the SWV initiative, as set out at appendix two to the report.
The Committee noted that the review had made several recommendations, including in
terms of: annual review via the Safe Durham Partnership (SDP) as regards the SWV
framework document; information sharing protocols and making best use of data collected;
ongoing monitoring of the SWVs via the SDP and Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) and
communication of outcomes with Firefighters; quality assurance in terms of the SWVs,
including via the evaluation undertaken and focus groups with staff to feedback
operationally as regards issues such as ongoing training and assessing whether pathways
being utilised were fit for purpose. The Strategic Manager – Public Health noted that there
had been value established in several areas, and example being that of interventions in
cases of falls and issues of loneliness.
The Chairman thanked the Strategic Manager – Public Health and reminded Members that
former Councillor and Vice-Chairman of the Committee, T Nearney had chaired the review
and had commented on the importance of the work and the ability of Firefighters to be able
to get people engaged and willing to talk about several issues, due to their trusted high
standing with the public and their high levels of skill and training. The Chairman asked
Members for their comments and questions.
Councillor J Considine noted that in her local village there as a project being undertaken
looking at the issue of social isolation and noted that recommendation two of the review
had noted local data that may be useful in relation to this project. The Strategic Manager –
Public Health noted that there was the framework in place, giving an overview, however he
was not sure that the SWV information was broken down at that level. He added that
Public Health information in relation to isolation may be available at the ward level and he
could look at this further.
The Chairman asked as regards communication of the information sharing protocol as he
had noted that members of the Community Action Team (CAT), when dealing with an
issue in his Division, had been unaware of the protocol. The Strategic Manager – Public
Health noted this would be an issue raised as regards awareness within the County
Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Service (CDDFRS) and with partners.
Councillor A Patterson noted that several of the AAPs were looking at the issue of social
isolation and the report may be useful for those AAPs.
Councillor J Charlton asked who Members should contact as regards SWVs, was it their
local Community Fire Station. The Strategic Manager – Public Health noted that he would
look into this issue.

Page 9

Councillor J Turnbull noted that he had attended SWVs with the CDDFRS and that he felt
they had been a great success, targeting areas where issues had been flagged up from
other data sources. He added that the Firefighters from the CDDFRS were well respected
and trusted by the public.
Chief Superintendent A Green noted the comment in terms of some Officers from partner
organisations not being aware of the information sharing protocol did not mean information
was not being shared effectively.
He explained that data that was shared automatically and information was utilised to make
the relevant referrals to partners such as Age Concern or Public Health where appropriate.
He added that the data was very useful in this respect and reassured the Committee that
the information was being shared as per the protocol in place.
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer noted that as Members had received several updates in
relation to the recommendations of the review the Committee was asked to confirm that
they were happy to sign off the review of the recommendations as being completed.
Resolved:
(i)
(ii)

That the report be noted.
That the review of the report recommendations be noted as completed.

10

Overview and Scrutiny Review Update:

The Overview and Scrutiny Officer gave a verbal update in relation to the review activities
of the Committee.
It was explained in respect of the Joint Working Group with the Children and Young
People’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee in relation to Private Children’s Residential
Care Homes work was ongoing and that the last meeting in January had looked at the
relevant regulations and legislation associated with Children’s Residential Care Homes.
Members noted additional meetings would be scheduled to look at issues, including the
Chairman of the Working Group, Councillor H Smith, to attend a Children’s Homes
Managers’ meeting.
Resolved:
That the verbal update be noted.
11

Police and Crime Panel

The Overview and Scrutiny Officer gave a verbal update report in respect of the Police and
Crime Panel (PCP), noting issues considered at the last meeting of the Panel included:
consultation in relation to the Council Tax Police Precept 2019/20 and the Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP). It was added that there had been a report in relation to campaign
activity, with issues that linked to the work of the Committee, an example given being
Selective Licensing.

Page 10

The Overview and Scrutiny Officer noted that links to the relevant reports that had been
considered would be circulated to Members, adding that a couple of items had been
deferred as the meeting was curtailed due to the inclement weather.
Resolved:
That the verbal update be noted.

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7

Safer and Stronger Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
22 March 2019
Organised Crime

Report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and
Partnerships
Electoral division(s) affected:
Countywide

Purpose of the Report
1

To provide the Safer and Stronger Communities Overview and Scrutiny
Committee with background information in advance of a presentation on
the partnership approach to tackling organised crime.

Executive summary
2

The presentation attached in appendix 2 will aim to provide Members
with an overview of the partnership approach to tackling organised
crime within the county. Information within the presentation is linked to
priority areas within the Serious & Organised Crime: Local Profile
document.

Recommendation
3

Members of the Committee are asked to note information contained
within this report and presentation and comment accordingly.

Background
4

At its meeting in June 2018, the Committee agreed its work programme
to include a presentation on organised crime. Information within this
presentation will build upon the report and presentation on ‘Progress of
recommendations following the Overview and Scrutiny Review of
Organised Crime’ to the Committee’s meeting in October 2017.

5

The presentation to the Committee’s meeting provided an overview of
the Partnership Disruption and Interventional panel and to disrupt and
tackle threats linked to the local profile document including illegal drugs,
modern slavery and human trafficking, environmental crime and county
lines.

Page 13

6

Published in November 2018, the Government’s Serious and Organised
Crime Strategy defines serious and organised crime as “individuals
planning, coordinating and committing serious offences, whether
individually, in groups and/or as part of transitional networks.” For
information, the Government’s Strategy can be accessed from the
following link
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/upl
oads/attachment_data/file/752850/SOC-2018-web.pdf

7

Superintendent Kevin Weir, Durham Constabulary will be in attendance
to deliver the presentation attached in appendix 2 that provides an
update on key threats linked to the serious and organised crime local
profiles document and partnership activity.

Main implications
Crime and Disorder
8

Information with this report aims to contribute to objectives within the
existing Council Plan and Safe Durham Partnership plan to reducing
crime and disorder.

Conclusion
9

The attached presentation provides an update and opportunity for
Members to comment on partnership activity through the serious and
organised crime local profiles document.

10

Background papers


None

Other useful documents


Contact:

Page 14

Progress of Recommendations following the Overview and
Scrutiny Review of Organised Crime’ – Safer and Stronger
Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee, October 2017

Jonathan Slee

Tel: 03000 268142

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
None.

Finance
None.

Consultation
None.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
None.

Human Rights
None.

Crime and Disorder
Information with this report aims to contribute to objectives within the existing
Council Plan and Safe Durham Partnership plan to reducing crime and
disorder.

Staffing
None.

Accommodation
None.

Risk
None.

Procurement
None.

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 2

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Page 20

Page 21

Page 22

Mainly Class A ( especially heroin and
crack cocaine) supply.
May result in sudden increase in drug
use in location

Local dealer likely to be controlled
through violence intimidation or debt
and may well be an addict
themselves, often operating from their
home

SIGNS TO WATCH
OUT FOR

Page 23

Arrangement will involve transfer of
cash and drugs between urban area
and more remote ‘quieter’ locations

Could be linked to CSE, for example by
exploiting children in care.

Page 24

Safer and Stronger Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Agenda Item 8

22 March 2019
Schools 20 mph Part-Time Speed Limits
Project - Update Report

Report of Corporate Management Team
Ian Thompson, Corporate Director of Regeneration and Local
Services
Councillor Brian Stephens, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for
Neighbourhoods and Local Partnerships
Electoral division(s) affected:
Countywide.

Purpose of the Report
1

The purpose of this report is to provide the Safer and Stronger
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee with a final update on
the Schools 20 mph Part-Time Speed Limits Project.

Executive summary
2

On 17 December 2014 Cabinet approved the Schools 20 mph PartTime Speed Limits Project. This involved introducing 20 mph part-time
speed limits or zones on main and distributor roads around 33 schools
with the highest accident rates.

3

The project was funded by a one-off Public Health Grant of £952,850
and was complemented by a revenue budget to help deliver road safety
education and social marketing.

Page 25

4

As the project was progressing under budget on 11 May 2016 Cabinet
approved using the underspend to expand its scope to include a further
33 schools. In addition, a further 12 schools in close proximity to those
prioritised for funding have been included where it was practical to do
so. This brings the total number of schools funded from the Public
Health Grant to 78.

5

These schemes have now been successfully introduced both on time
and under budget. There is an underspend of £106,000 and it will be
recommended to Cabinet that it be used to expand the scope of the
project further to include the next six schools on the prioritisation list.

6

The council has always made clear that further schemes can be added
to the project where fully funded by local Councillors, Area Action
Partnerships, Schools and Town/Parish Councils. 31 schemes have
been completed to date through these funding sources and a further 15
are in development.

7

The project has been a great success with strong support from local
Councillors and the public.

Recommendation
8

It is recommended that The Safer and Stronger Communities Overview
and Scrutiny Committee:


Notes the contents of the update report.

Background
9

On 17 December 2014 Cabinet approved the project. This involved
introducing 20 mph part-time speed limits or zones on main and
distributor roads around 33 schools with the highest accident rates.

10

The objectives of the project was to improve road safety in the vicinity of
schools during school drop off and pick up times as well as encouraging
walking and cycling to school.

11

The project also included education and awareness raising to
encourage motorists to reduce their speed and encourage children to
walk and cycle to school.

12

The project was funded by a one-off Public Health Grant of £952,850
and was complemented by a revenue budget to help deliver road safety
education and social marketing.

13

An update report was approved by Cabinet on 11 May 2016 which
highlighted that the project was progressing under budget and ahead of
schedule.

Page 26

14

Cabinet approved using the underspend to expand the scope of the
project to include a further 33 schools using revised prioritisation criteria
developed in consultation with the Scrutiny 20mph Working Group.

The Original 33 Schools
15

20 mph part-time speed limits or zones were introduced at the original
33 schools between 2015 and 2017. Please see Appendix 2 Project
Plan - Original 33 Schools for further details.

The Additional 33 Schools
16

The 20 mph part-time speed limits or zones at the additional 33 schools
have now been completed bringing the total number of schools
benefiting from 20 mph part-time speed limits or zones to 66. Please
see Appendix 3 Project Plan – Additional 33 Schools for further details.

17

A further 12 schools have been in sufficiently close proximity to the 66
schools identified to also benefit from the introduction of 20 mph parttime speed limits or zones. Please see Appendix 4 Project Plan –
Bonus Schools for further details.

18

Consequently, a total of 78 schools have benefited from Public Health
Grant funding to date and all these schemes have now been
successfully introduced both on time and under budget.

19

Budget savings of £106,000 have resulted from 20 mph part-time speed
limits and zones identified for implementation at schools in Barnard
Castle being introduced as part of wider road safety measures funded
by both the Department for Transport Safer Roads Fund and the Local
Transport Plan. Further savings were made due to estimated
construction costs at some schools being less than anticipated.

Page 27

20

The budget saving of £106,000 will be reported to Cabinet along with a
recommendation that it be used to expand the scope of the project to
include schemes at a further six schools.

Third Party Funded Schools
21

The council’s 20 mph Speed Limits and Zones Policy 2016 enables
further 20 mph part-time speed limits or zones to be introduced when
fully funded by third parties.

22

To date an additional 31 schemes have been completed with a further
15 in development. The majority have been funded from Members’
Neighbourhood Budgets with a smaller number being funded by either
Parish Councils, Schools or other external funding.

23

Please see Appendix 5 Project Plan - Third Party Funded Schools for
further details.

Road Safety Education and Social Marketing
24

An integral element of the project is the delivery of education, training
and social marketing to raise safety awareness, encourage children to
walk and cycle to school and persuade motorists to reduce their speed.

25

To achieve this the Road Safety Team use a variety of methods,
mediums and resources including:

Page 28



bikeability national cycle training & practical child pedestrian
training;



general road safety awareness through safety carousels;



use of local artists to assist pupils designing signs;

26



use of local authors to design and write articles about the benefits
of slower speeds;



use of peer-to-peer learning through theatre in education;



the production of videos and leaflets/banners/newspapers;



the introduction of school Junior Road Safety Officers to help
maintain and promote road safety messages to pupils;



school gate parking banners and posters;



the production of lesson plans and ideas for teachers to use when
implementing projects;



working with sustainable walking charity, Living Streets, to
introduce incentivised walking schemes; and



the distribution of letters and plans to the school and the wider
population providing details of the scheme and the benefits of
slower speeds with further information published on our website.

The videos and lesson plans used to deliver the project remain
available on the Schools Extranet and can be used by schools to
sustain the life of the project long after its completion.

Benefits Realisation
Durham University Study
27

In 2016 Durham University were commissioned to carry out a study
evaluating the effects of 20 mph speed limits. The study considered the
wider health and wellbeing outcomes of 20 mph speed limits such as
increased active travel and improved feelings of safety.

28

The evaluation demonstrated a number of positive findings. These
included widespread acceptance of 20 mph speed limits by various
stakeholders. In addition, perception of safety increased leading to an
elevated desire to walk and cycle to school.

29

Please see Appendix 6 Durham University - Evaluation for further
details.

Department for Transport Study
30

In 2018, engineering consultancy, Atkins, produced a study evaluating
the effects of 20 mph speed limits on behalf of the Department for
Transport.

Page 29

31

The study confirmed that most residents and drivers support 20 mph
speed limits.

32

Overall, the study established that the introduction of 20 mph limits led
to a small reduction in median speed (less than 1 mph) but vehicles
traveling at higher speeds before the change of speed limit reduced
their speed more than those already travelling at lower speeds.

33

The study supported advice found in the Department for Transport’s
guidance ‘Setting Local Speed Limits’ and found that benefits of 20 mph
schemes include quality of life and community benefits and
encouragement of healthier and more sustainable modes such as
walking and cycling.

34

Please see Appendix 7 Department for Transport - Evaluation Summary
Letter for further details.

Further Schemes
35

The council has always made clear that further schemes can be
undertaken where fully funded by Area Action Partnerships, Member
Neighbourhood Budgets, Town Councils, Parish Councils and Schools.

36

The average cost of a scheme is £15,000 although this varies by site.
Any party wishing to enquire about progressing a scheme should
contact:




Danny Harland, Traffic Assets and Streetworks Manager
Email: danny.harland@durham.gov.uk
Telephone: 03000 263982

Conclusion
37

20 mph part-time speed limits have been successfully introduced at 78
schools using a one-off Public Health Grant of £952,850.

38

It is proposed that the underspend of £106,000 be used to expand the
scope of the project to a further six schools.

39

The project has been very well supported by local Members, AAPs,
Town/Parish Councils and Schools. This has led to a further 31
schemes either being completed with a further 15 in development.

Appendices

Page 30



Appendix 1: Implications



Appendix 2: Project Plan - Original 33 Schools



Appendix 3: Project Plan - Additional 33 Schools



Appendix 4: Project Plan – Bonus Schools



Appendix 5: Project Plan - Third Party Funded Schools



Appendix 6: Durham University - Evaluation



Appendix 7: Department for Transport - Evaluation (Summary
Letter)

Background papers


Introduction of New 20 mph Speed Limits and Zones Policy 2016



Review of Current Policy on 20 mph Zones and Limits, Cabinet
Report - 17th December 2014



Schools 20 mph Part-Time Speed Limits Project – Update and
Scrutiny Review, Cabinet Report - 11 May 2016

Other useful documents


Overview and Scrutiny Working Group Schools 20 mph Part-Time
Speed Limits Update Report - 15 January 2018



Department for Transport 20 mph Research Study – Process and
Impact Evaluation: Headline Report – November 2018

Contact:

John Reed

Tel: 03000 267454

[Forename Surname]

Tel: 03000 XXXXXX

Page 31

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
The council has the power as the local Highway Authority to introduce 20 mph
speed limits and zones under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (as
amended) by making Traffic Regulation Orders and where appropriate the
Highways Act 1980 (as amended).

Finance
See the main implications detailed in the report.

Consultation
All changes to speed limits need to be consulted upon and any objections to
the introduction of mandatory speed limits that cannot be resolved informally
will be considered by the Highways Committee.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
None.

Human Rights
None.

Crime and Disorder
None.

Staffing
Schemes are delivered by existing staff supported by our supply chain of
competitively procured contractors.

Accommodation
None.

Risk
There may be objections to schemes which will be considered through the
consultation process.

Procurement
Schemes are delivered by existing staff supported by our supply chain of
competitively procured contractors.

Page 32

Appendix 2: Project Plan - Original 33 Schools
School 20 mph Project - Original 33 Schemes
YEAR 1 - 2015/2016
No. School
1
Newker Primary
2
Bullion Lane Primary
3
The Hermitage School
4
Evergreen School
5
Bishop Barrington
6
St Anne’s C of E (Cont.) Primary
7
Woodhouse Community Primary
8
Etherley Lane Nursery
9
Etherley Lane Primary
10 King James I Academy
11 St Cuthbert’s RCVA
12 Park View Community School
13 Cestria Primary
YEAR 2 - 2016/2017
No. School
14 Westlea Primary
15 New Seaham Primary Academy
16 Seaham School of Technology
17 Seaham Trinity Primary
18 Seaview Primary
19 North Durham Academy
20 Greenland Community Primary
21 Shotley Bridge Infant
22 Shotley Bridge Junior
23 Consett Infant & Nursery
24 St Patricks RCVA Primary
25 St Joseph’s RCVA Primary
26 Dene House Primary
27 Dene House Community School of Technology
28 Acre Rigg Infant & Junior Academy
29 Cotsford Junior
30 St Marys RCVA Primary
31 Sugar Hill Primary
32 King Street
33 Rosa Street Primary

Town
Chester-le-Street
Chester-le-Street
Chester-le-Street
Bishop Auckland
Bishop Auckland
Bishop Auckland
Bishop Auckland
Bishop Auckland
Bishop Auckland
Bishop Auckland
Chester-le-Street
Chester-le-Street
Chester-le-Street
Town
Seaham
Seaham
Seaham
Seaham
Seaham
Stanley
Stanley
Consett
Consett
Consett
Consett
Gilesgate/Durham
Peterlee
Peterlee
Peterlee
Horden/Peterlee
Newton Aycliffe
Newton Aycliffe
Spennymoor
Spennymoor

Page 33

Appendix 3: Project Plan - Additional 33 Schools
School 20 mph Project - Additional 33 Schemes
YEAR 3 - 2017/2018
No. School
1
Byron College
2
Our Lady of the Rosary RCVA Primary
3
St. Bede's RC Comp. + 6th
4
Easington Colliery Primary
5
Ropery Walk Primary
6
Seaham Harbour Nursery
7
Our Lady Star of the Sea RCVA Primary
8
Shotton Hall Academy
9
Shotton Hall Primary
10 Easington Academy
11 Whitworth Park School + 6th College
12 Nevilles Cross Primary
13 New College
14 Framwellgate School
15 Framwellgate Moor Primary
16 St. Leonard's Catholic School + 6th
YEAR 4 - 2018/2019
No. School
17 Pelton Community Primary
18 Sacriston Primary Academy
19 Chester-le-Street C of E Primary
20 Roseberry Primary
21 St. Joseph's RCVA Primary (Stanley)
22 Consett Academy (new site)
23 Annfield Plain Junior
24 Annfield Plain Infant School
25 St. Bede's Catholic School & 6th Form College
26 Shield Row Primary
27 Delves Lane Primary
28 Tanfield School (Science & Engineering)
29 Teesdale School
30 Green Lane C of E Primary
31 Cockton Hill Schools
32 Our Lady & St. Thomas RCVA Primary
33 Willington Primary

Page 34

Town
Peterlee
Peterlee
Peterlee
Easington Colliery
Seaham
Seaham
Horden
Peterlee
Peterlee
Easington Village
Spennymoor
Nevilles Cross
Durham
Framwellgate Moor
Framwellgate Moor
Durham
Town
Pelton
Sacriston
Chester-le-Street
Pelton
Stanley
Consett
Annfield Plain
Annfield Plain
Lanchester
Shield Row
Consett
Tanfield Lea
Barnard Castle
Barnard Castle
Bishop Auckland
Willington
Willington

Appendix 4: Project Plan – Bonus Schools
School 20 mph Project - Bonus Schools
No. School
Town
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12

Bishop Auckland
College
St John's Catholic & 6th
Form
St Cuthbert's RCVA
Primary
East Stanley Primary
St Hild's College C of E
Yohden Primary
Cotsford Infants
Vane Road Primary
Consett County Junior
St Stephen's C of E
Primary
Parkside Academy
St Godric’s RC Primary

Bishop Auckland

Link to Original 66
Schemes
Bishop Barrington

Bishop Auckland

Bishop Barrington

Seaham

Westlea Primary

North Durham Academy
Gilesgate/ Durham St Joseph's RCVA
Primary
Horden/Peterlee
Cotsford Junior
Horden/Peterlee
Cotsford Junior
Newton Aycliffe
St. Mary's RCVA Primary
Consett
Consett County Junior
Willington
Willington Primary
Willington
Framwellgate
Moor

Willington Primary
Framwellgate Moor
Secondary

Page 35

Appendix 5: Project Plan - Third Party Funded Schools
Third Party Funded - Schemes Completed
Town
No. School
1 Oxclose Primary
Spennymoor
2 St Charles RC Primary
Spennymoor
3 Bowburn Junior
Bowburn
4 Park View Community School
Chester-le-Street
(North Lodge)
5 Coxhoe Primary School
Coxhoe
6 West Rainton Primary
West Rainton
7 Langley Moor Primary
Langley Moor
8 Middlestone Moor Primary
Middlestone Moor
9 The Oaks Secondary School
Middlestone Moor
10 Tudhoe Colliery Primary
Tudhoe Colliery
11 North Park Primary
Spennymoor
12 Silver Tree Primary
Ushaw Moor
13 St Joseph's RCVA Primary
Ushaw Moor
14 Ramshaw Primary
Ramshaw
15 Ferryhill Business & Enterprise Ferryhill
College
16 Easington CofE Primary
Easington Village
17 Durham High School for Girls
Durham
18 Great Lumley Junior School
Great Lumley
19 Finchale Primary
Newton Hall
20 Newton Hall Primary School
Newton Hall
21 Blue Coat Primary School
Newton Hall
22 Belmont Community School
Belmont
23

Belmont CE Primary

Belmont

24

St Thomas More RCVA
Primary
Belmont Cheverley Park
Primary
Durham Gilesgate School

Belmont

UTC South Durham
Montalbo Road Nursery and
Primary
St Mary's RCVA Primary
School
St Bede's RCVA Primary
School
Stanley Crook Primary

Newton Aycliffe
Barnard Castle

25
26
27
28
29
30
31

Page 36

Belmont
Belmont

Barnard Castle
Sacriston
Stanley Crook

Funding
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
AAP
Parish Council
funded
Parish Council
funded
Parish Council
funded
Parish Council
funded
Parish Council
funded
School funded
Safer Roads Fund /
LTP
Safer Roads Fund /
LTP
Developer
AAP & School
funded

Appendix 6: Durham University - Evaluation

1.

Transport is an important social determinant of health. Over a quarter of
pedestrian injuries in children occur in the most deprived wards (NICE,
2010). The main factor behind this is exposure to danger rather than
individual behaviour. For instance, high-speed traffic is disproportionately
located in more deprived neighbourhoods.

2.

The National Institute of Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE)
recommends that traffic calming measures be implemented to reduce
speed (including changes to the speed limit such as implementing areawide 20 mph limits) with the aim of reducing casualties. In addition, the
Department for Transport (2012) also advocated 20 mph zones or limits in
primarily residential areas and in towns or cities where pedestrians and
cyclists are highly concentrated, such as around schools.

3.

Health inequalities may be reduced through traffic calming measures that
encourage the uptake of physical activity (e.g. more walking and cycling
due to better road/pavement design, increased perceptions of safety),
thereby overcoming some current barriers to active transport
(walking/cycling).

4.

These interventions should be underpinned by “soft” or social marketing to
support the implementation of signs-only 20 mph limits combined with time
limited interventions such as Speed Indicator Devices (SIDs) to ‘nudge’
driver’s behaviour.

5.

The part-time speed limit is in operation between the hours of 8-9am and
3-4pm (the most busy school drop off/collection times). The evaluation was
conducted over a six-month period between April 2016 and September
2016 by researchers at Durham University. Ethical approval from both
Durham University and Durham County Council was obtained prior to the
commencement of this research.

6.

The aim of this evaluation is to look at the effects of 20 mph limits on the
wider health and wellbeing outcomes such as whether there has been
increased active travel and improved feelings of safety.

Page 37

7.

The evaluation framework that was developed in collaboration with
Durham County Council in late 2015. The evaluation was divided into two
components: process and outcome. The purpose of the process evaluation
was to identify aspects of the scheme that have worked well and areas for
improvement to be able to feed forward into the next phase of
implementation whereas the outcome evaluation was to assess the
impacts of 20 mph limits to data on perceptions of safety and active travel.

8.

A mixed-method evaluation was used to assess the impact of a road safety
programme to underpin the 20 mph limit programme in County Durham
from:





9.

A survey of 10 schools comprising 493 pupils;
Case study (interviews and focus group);
Feedback from a Junior Road Safety Officer (JRSO) event held at the
Council (24 attendees completed the survey); and
A school census on active travel.

The evaluation demonstrated a number of positive findings including the
widespread acceptance of the schemes as demonstrated by the case
study school (from both pupils and teachers) as well as other stakeholders
including a health champion, community members and a local resident.

10. Perceptions of safety have significantly increased as shown by the school
survey results and mentioned in some of the interviews/responses in the
survey also revealed a desire to walk or cycle to school instead of being
driven following the 20 mph limit. The evaluation also validates the high
quality of the road safety programmes that are developed and
implemented by the Council’s road safety team.
11. However, some concerns were identified and suggestions were raised to
improve the scheme relating to raising awareness of the scheme in the
community and particularly aimed at parents and motorists to reinforce the
20 mph limits (through ‘nudge’ approaches. The national evidence clearly
indicates that changing driver behaviour is a long-term goal and all 20 mph
schemes should be supported by ‘soft measures’ to underpin these
programmes.
12. The evaluation recommendations are therefore as follows:
i. Targeted media campaign of the benefits of 20 mph limits at motorists
(especially parents) from areas where the 20 mph limits are located;
ii. Implement the use of other measures to ‘nudge’ behaviour for example
the use SIDs for at least two weeks and no longer than three weeks at
sites as recommended by the Transport Research Laboratory (2008)
and/or community speed watch programmes; and
iii. Continue with the road safety activities alongside implementing the 20
mph limit particularly the JRSO which was the most preferred by the
majority of the pupils.

Page 38

Appendix 7: Department for Transport - Evaluation (Summary
Letter)

Page 39

Page 40

Appendix 8

Schools 20 mph
Part-Time Speed
Limits Project

Overview and
Scrutiny Update
22 March 2019

Page 41

Page 42

Introduction
• Project approved by Cabinet on
17 December 2014
• 33 schools with the highest
accident rates
• Funded by one-off Public Health
Grant of £952,850
• Complemented by a revenue
budget to deliver road safety
education and social marketing

Additional 33 Schools May 2016
• Project was progressing under
budget
• Cabinet approved expanding
scope to include a further 33
schools
• Additional 33 schools selected
using updated prioritisation criteria
developed in consultation with
Scrutiny 20 mph Working Group

Page 43

Page 44

Updated Project Scope
Scope Completed

Number of
Schools

Original

33

Additional

33

Bonus

12

Third Party Funded

31

Total

109

• Public Health Grant underspend of £106,000
• Recommended use to fund an additional 6 schools
• A further 15 schemes are in development through
third party funding

Road Safety Education and
Social Marketing
• Integral element of 20s
Project
• Raise safety awareness
• Encourage walking and
cycling
• Persuade motorists to
reduce speed

Page 45

Page 46

Road Safety Education and
Social Marketing Activities
• Cycle training & practical child pedestrian training
• Use of local artists and authors to help pupils designing
signs and write articles about the benefits of lower
speeds
• Peer-to-peer learning through theatre education
• The introduction of Junior Road Safety Officers to help
maintain and promote road safety messages
• Working with sustainable walking charity Living Streets
to introduce incentivised walking schemes
• The distribution of letters and plans to the school and
wider population providing details of the scheme and its
benefits

Benefits Realisation –
Durham University
• Evaluation conducted over a 6 month period in 2016
• The evaluation consisted of:
1. A survey of 10 schools comprising 493 pupils
2. Case study (interviews and focus group)
3. Feedback from a Junior Road Safety Officer event
4. School census on active travel

Page 47

Page 48

Benefits Realisation–
Durham University (1)
• Evaluation demonstrated a number of positive
findings:
− Widespread acceptance of the scheme
− Increase in perception of road safety
− Increased desire to walk and cycle to school
• Evaluation highlighted that:
− Changing driver behaviour is a long-term goal
and all 20 mph schemes should be supported by
‘soft measures’ and reinforced using ‘nudge’
approaches to underpin their implementation

Benefits Realisation–
Durham University (2)

Page 49

Page 50

Benefits Realisation–
Durham University (3)

Benefits Realisation –
Department for Transport
•

Evaluation demonstrated 20 mph limits:
− Lead to a small reduction in median
speeds (less than 1 mph)
− Cause vehicles travelling at higher
speeds before the change of speed limit
to reduce their speed more than those
already travelling at lower speeds
− Encourage healthier and more
sustainable transport modes such as
walking and cycling

•

Evaluation found:
− Insufficient evidence to conclude that in
residential areas a 20 mph limit led to a
significant change in collisions or
casualties

Page 51

Page 52

Any Questions?

Agenda Item 9

Safer and Stronger Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
22 March 2019
Quarter Three 2018/19
Performance Management Report

Report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and
Partnerships

Electoral division(s) affected:
Countywide.

Purpose of the Report
1

To present progress towards achieving the key outcomes of the
council’s corporate performance framework for the Altogether Safer
priority theme.

Performance Report for quarter three, 2018/19
2

The performance report for quarter three, 2018/19 is attached at
Appendix 2. It is structured around a set of key questions aligned to the
Altogether Safer priority theme and includes the key performance
messages from data available this quarter along with visual summaries
and data tables for each priority theme.

Future Performance Reporting
3

As our current vision, which forms the basis of this performance report,
is over nine years old and many of the original aims have been
achieved, we are developing a new set of proposed ambitions that
better reflect the needs and opportunities of County Durham.
Consequently, from quarter one, 2019/20, the format and content of this
performance report will change to align it to the new vision.

Executive summary
4

The change in crime recording practices continues to impact the crime
and anti-social behaviour (ASB) levels, as many incidents previously
recorded as ASB are now recorded as crimes. Overall crime levels have

Page 53

increased, but reported anti-social behaviour incidents have decreased
by a similar number. Although our substance misuse service was rated
as ‘requires improvement’, the Care Quality Commission also
recognised many areas of good practice. A rise in recorded domestic
violence incidents of 6% has been noted if compared with 2017 and is
being further investigated; improvements in support have been made
with Operation Encompass (addressing the impact of domestic abuse
on children) now in every County Durham school.

Risk Management
5

Effective risk management is a vital component of the council’s agenda.
The council’s risk management process sits alongside our change
programme and is incorporated into all significant change and
improvement projects.

6

The key risk to successfully delivering the objectives of this theme is:
Failure to protect a vulnerable adult from death or serious harm. Management
consider it possible that this risk could occur which, in addition to the severe
impacts on service users, will result in serious damage to the council’s
reputation and to relationships with its safeguarding partners. As the statutory
body, the multi-agency Safeguarding Adults Board has a Business Plan in
place for taking forward actions to safeguard vulnerable adults including a
comprehensive training programme for staff and regular supervision takes
place. This risk is long term and procedures are reviewed regularly.

Recommendation
7

That Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Management Board considers
the overall position and direction of travel in relation to quarter three
performance, and the actions being taken to address areas of
underperformance.

Contact:

Page 54

Jenny Haworth

Tel: 03000 268071

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
Not applicable.

Finance
Latest performance information is being used to inform corporate, service and
financial planning.

Consultation
Not applicable.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
Equality measures are monitored as part of the performance monitoring
process.

Human Rights
Not applicable.

Crime and Disorder
A number of performance indicators and key actions relating to crime and
disorder are continually monitored in partnership with Durham Constabulary.

Staffing
Performance against a number of relevant corporate health indicators has
been included to monitor staffing issues.

Accommodation
Not applicable.

Risk
Reporting of significant risks and their interaction with performance is
integrated into the quarterly performance management report.

Procurement
Not applicable.

Page 55

This page is intentionally blank

Page 56

Appendix 2

Durham County Council
Performance Management
Report
Quarter Three, 2018/19

Page 57

Page 58

ALTOGETHER SAFER
How effective are we at tackling (1) crime and disorder, and (2) anti-social behaviour?

50% of respondents to National Crime Survey think Council & Police are dealing with ASB and crime
issues that matter to the local area (September 2018)

74 crimes per

38,856
crimes

violence
against the
person

1,000 population

18,768
ASB incidents

+ 2,284
other crimes

+ 18%

+ 318
+ 6%

theft
offences

- 124
all recorded crime

- 1%

+ 1,870
robbery

+ 5%

-6

criminal
damage &
arson

- 502

-5%
sexual
offences

- 8%

- 100
- 8%

1 April – 31 December 2018
Compared to same period the previous year

8,191

-249

council reported

(- 3%)

10,577

- 1,495

police reported

(- 12%)

Altogether Safer
1

The priority theme of Altogether Safer is structured around the following five key
questions:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

How effective are we at tackling crime and disorder?
How effective are we at tackling anti-social behaviour?
How well do we reduce misuse of drugs and alcohol?
How well do we tackle abuse of vulnerable people, including domestic
abuse, child exploitation and radicalisation?
How do we keep our environment safe, including roads and waterways?

How effective are we at tackling crime and disorder, and Anti-Social
Behaviour (ASB)?
2

The increase in crime and decrease in ASB incidents can be partly attributed to the
change in crime recording practices. Many incidents that were previously recorded
as ASB would now be recorded as crimes.

3

Within the category of ‘violence against the person’, which accounts for 36% of all
recorded crime, most of the increase could be attributed to the sub-category of
‘violence without injury’. This is consistent across the county and can be explained
by an improved compliance with National Crime Recording Standards, particularly
in relation to harassment.

4

Although there has been an overall improvement in theft offences, there have been
increases in the underlying categories of ‘theft from vehicles’ (+4%), ‘theft from the
person’ (+7%) and ‘shoplifting’ (+22%).

5

There was an increase in ‘shoplifting’ across some localities: Bishop Auckland,
Crook, Newton Aycliffe, Spennymoor, Chester-le-Street and Stanley. Further
analysis is being carried out, in conjunction with the Police, to determine if there is
any link between these increases and the rollout of Universal Credit.

6

The Police and Local Council ASB confidence indicator continues to decline
(although the latest figure remains within the 5.5% confidence level). The Safe
Durham Partnership is establishing a joint tasking group to better understand the
reasons for this decline, and to implement plans to improve performance.

Page 59

Page 60

ALTOGETHER SAFER
How well do we (3) reduce misuse of drugs and alcohol, and (4) tackle abuse of vulnerable people?

1,893

1 April to 31 December 2018

Alcohol related
violent crime

Compared to same period the
previous year

Domestic
Violence

1,866

- 78

170

+38

 23% in

Alcohol related
ASB^

(- 4%)

Drug related
ASB^

(+ 29%)

incidents involving
mental health

 5.7% in
incidents
(YTD compared to
2017)

 36% in
incidents involving
alcohol

an issue in 61.5%
of Initial Child
Protection
Conferences

a factor in 38% of
social care
assessments

95% of children

89% of adults felt

felt safer upon
exiting Harbour
support services

safer upon exiting
Harbour support
services

^police figures only

Successful Completion of treatment…

268 children

(May 17 to Apr 18 with reps to Oct 18)

referred to
outreach services

• 31.9% (351)
• Target 28%
• England 38.6%

• 5.3% (79)
• Target 6%
• England 6.2%

• 28.6% (229)
• Target 26.4%
• England 36%

Alcohol

Opiates

Nonopiates

169

 22 (12%)

child sexual exploitation referrals
(12 months ending Dec-18)

(compared to same
period last year)

Operation
Encompass in

every County
Durham school

Preventing
Modern
Day Slavery

We have approved a new Modern Slavery
Charter which outlines our commitment to
preventing modern slavery in County
Durham
To find out more about the charter, click here.

How well do we reduce misuse of drugs and alcohol?
7

Following a Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection, our Substance Misuse
Service, Centre for Change, received an overall rating of ‘requires improvement’.1
This was because staff did not always record safety related information within client
care records, despite the potential serious risks associated with people with drug
and alcohol addictions. Staff did not record sufficient information about clients who
use the service which meant that care was not always person-centred, patients
were not routinely involved in decisions about their care and treatment and staff
were not up to date with their mandatory training (only 65% had completed their elearning).

8

An action plan outlining remedial action for each concern has been developed and
has been submitted to the CQC. Ongoing progress against the action plan will be
reported to the County Durham Drug and Alcohol Recovery Services Contract
Review Group. The e-learning training issue has since been addressed and
improvements highlighted in the case management process are being developed.

9

The CQC also highlighted areas of good practice including: sufficient numbers of
skilled and experienced staff to deliver safe care and treatment; clients are treated
in a kind, caring and compassionate manner; staff monitor and address the
physical healthcare of clients; service users can give feedback; care and
intervention treatments following national guidance on best practice; information is
accessible to those with dyslexia, literacy issues, visual impairment and for those
whom English was not a first language and the service proactively engages with
the local community.

How well do we tackle abuse of vulnerable people, including domestic
abuse, child sexual exploitation and radicalisation?
10

A Joint Targeted Area Inspection (JTAI) of the multi-agency response to domestic
abuse in County Durham was carried out during quarter two.

11

The Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) Executive Group and its partners
have worked closely together to develop a detailed action plan to address the
areas inspectors identified as requiring improvement. The LSCB Executive Group
will hold responsibility for the overall monitoring of the action plan. By receiving
quarterly reports, they will hold to account, challenge and scrutinise the actions of
individual partner agencies and partnership groups to ensure our actions are
having the desired impact on outcomes for children in County Durham.

12

The LSCB held a number of activities as part of National Safeguarding Week (2630 November 2018), focusing on CSE and Prevent. We launched a joint social

1

CQC report (01/01/2019)

Page 61

Page 62

ALTOGETHER SAFER
5. How do we keep our environment safe including roads and waterways?
DfT Road User Casualty Statistics:
change from 2016 to 2017

152 people
Killed or
seriously
injured in
road traffic
collisions*

-52

6 fatalities
146 injuries

(25%)
Fatalities

16 children

-2

0 fatalities
16 injuries
Jan-Dec 2018

Serious
Injuries

(11%)

County
Durham

Regional

National

 14%

 5%

0%

18%

 3%

Drown’
campaign can be found
here.

 3%

National and regional figures were lowest recorded
since records began in 1979. Some of lowest figures
recorded over last five years

Compared to Jan-Dec 2017

Road traffic collisions - fatalities

Road traffic collisions - serious injuries
(rolling year)

(rolling year)

26

186
21

17

Information about the
Royal Lifesaving
Society’s
‘Don’t Drink and

18

165

186
157
146

6
Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3
2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

* CRASH recording system allows casualty information to be updated throughout the year, therefore numbers and severity of injury can change.
2018/19 data verified February 2019. 2017 casualty data verified June 18.

13

media campaign which aimed to highlight safeguarding issues, encourage
conversations about keeping children safe and improving understanding of
safeguarding in the community.

How do we keep our environment safe, including roads and
waterways?
14

In January 2019, the Cleveland and Durham Strategic Road Safety Partnership
Board was established to oversee the strategic direction of casualty reduction.
Membership includes the local authorities, Police and Fire and Rescue services.
The group is supported by the Cleveland and Durham Operational Delivery Group,
previously the County Durham and Darlington Casualty Reduction Forum.

15

We continue to plan for countywide delivery of the ‘dying to be cool’ water safety
campaign, which includes school assemblies. Monitoring assessments and new
open water safety risk assessments were undertaken throughout the quarter,
some of which were in response to concerns raised by elected members and the
public. There were no significant incidents throughout quarter three.

16

During quarter three, a multi-agency meeting took place at Bowlees Visitor Centre
at Middleton-in-Teesdale to discuss safety concerns relating to access to Low
Force and the misuse of the listed Wynch Bridge structure. It was agreed to issue
information to recreational groups using the river and remind them of the Low
Force river code of conduct during quarter four.

17

In December 2018, via the City Safety Group, we launched the national ‘Don’t
Drink and Drown’ open water safety campaign.

18

The group also looked at the recommendations, previously provided by an
independent Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents (RoSPA) study, relating
to the design of the new Riverwalk development, and the Riverwalk manager
provided an update of safety control measures being put in place. City Safety
Group members will tour the development prior to the final opening to ensure that
all safety concerns relative to water safety and the river have been addressed.

Page 63

Key Performance Indicators – Data Tables
Page 64

There are two types of performance indicators throughout this document:
(a)

Key target indicators – targets are set as improvements can be measured regularly and can be actively influenced by the council and its
partners; and

(b)

Key tracker indicators – performance is tracked but no targets are set as they are long-term and/or can only be partially influenced by the
council and its partners.

A guide is available which provides full details of indicator definitions and data sources for the 2017/18 corporate indicator set. This is available to
view either internally from the intranet or can be requested from the Strategy Team at performance@durham.gov.uk
KEY TO SYMBOLS
Direction of travel

Benchmarking

Performance against target

GREEN

Same or better than comparable period

Same or better than comparable group

Meeting or exceeding target

AMBER

Worse than comparable period
(within 2% tolerance)

Worse than comparable group
(within 2% tolerance)

Performance within 2% of target

RED

Worse than comparable period
(greater than 2%)

Worse than comparable group
(greater than 2%)

Performance >2% behind target

National Benchmarking
We compare our performance to all English authorities. The number of authorities varies according to the performance indicator and functions of
councils, for example educational attainment is compared to county and unitary councils however waste disposal is compared to district and unitary
councils.
North East Benchmarking
The North East figure is the average performance from the authorities within the North East region, i.e. County Durham, Darlington, Gateshead,
Hartlepool, Middlesbrough, Newcastle upon Tyne, North Tyneside, Northumberland, Redcar and Cleveland, Stockton-On-Tees, South Tyneside,
Sunderland, The number of authorities also varies according to the performance indicator and functions of councils.
More detail is available from the Strategy Team at performance@durham.gov.uk

ALTOGETHER SAFER
1. How effective are we at tackling crime and disorder?
Comparison to
Latest data

Period
covered

90

First time entrants to the youth
justice system aged 10 to 17 (per
100,000 population of 10 to 17 year
olds)

250

Jul 17–
Jun 18

91

Overall crime rate per 1,000
population

96.3

2018

92

Rate of theft offences per 1,000
population

27.7

2018

93

Proportion of all offenders who reoffend in a 12 month period

31

Apr-Mar
17

94

Proven re-offending by young people
(who offend) in a 12 month period
(%)

41.4

Apr 16–
Mar 17

Ref

Description

Period
target

12
months
earlier

National
figure

North
East
figure

Nearest
statistical
neighbour

Tracker

371

262

349

266

N/a

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

Tracker

91.6

N/a

RED

Tracker

27.7

N/a

GREEN

Tracker

32.5

29.3

34.8

N/a

GREEN

AMBER

GREEN

Tracker

46.4

40.9

41.8

Period
covered
if
different

Data
updated
this
quarter

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
N/a

GREEN

AMBER

GREEN

Page 65

ALTOGETHER SAFER
Page 66

2. How effective are we at tackling anti-social behaviour?

Ref

Comparison to
Description

95

Dealing with concerns of ASB and
crime issues (%) by the local council
and police

96

97

Latest
data

Period
covered

North
East
figure

Period
target

12 months
earlier

Tracker

55.1

58.1

N/a

RED

RED

50

2017

Number of police reported incidents of
anti-social behaviour

10,577

Apr-Dec
2018

Tracker

12,072

N/a

GREEN

Number of council reported incidents
of anti-social behaviour

8,191

Apr-Dec
2018

Tracker

8,440

N/a

GREEN

National
figure

Data
updated
Nearest
Period
this
statistical covered if
quarter
neighbour different

Yes

Yes

Yes

ALTOGETHER SAFER
3. How well do we reduce misuse of drugs and alcohol?

Ref

Description

Latest
data

Period
covered

98

% of successful completions of those
in alcohol treatment

31.9

May 17-Apr
18 with rep
to Oct 18

99

% of successful completions of those
in drug treatment - opiates

5.3

May 17-Apr
18 with rep
to Oct 18

100

% of successful completions of those
in drug treatment - non-opiates

28.6

May 17-Apr
18 with rep
to Oct 18

101

17.6

Comparison to
North
National
East
figure
figure

Period
target

12 months
earlier

28.0

30.3

38.6

30.7

GREEN

GREEN

RED

GREEN

6.0

6.8

6.2

4.9

AMBER

AMBER

AMBER

AMBER

26.4

27.6

38.6

25.8

GREEN

GREEN

RED

GREEN

Tracker

16.1

Nearest
statistical
neighbour

Period
covered if
different

Data
updated
this
quarter

North East
2017

Yes

North East
2017

Yes

North East
2017

Yes
Yes

ALTOGETHER SAFER
3. How well do we reduce misuse of drugs and alcohol?

Ref

Description

Latest
data

% of anti-social behaviour incidents
that are alcohol related
102

103

% of violent crime that is alcohol
related

Alcohol seizures

Period
covered
Apr-Dec
2018

31.6%

194

Apr-Dec
2018
Apr-Jun
2018

Period
target

12 months
earlier

N/a

RED

Tracker

25.1

Comparison to
North
National
East
figure
figure

Nearest
statistical
neighbour

Period
covered if
different

Data
updated
this
quarter

Yes
N/a

RED

Tracker

398

N/a

GREEN

No

ALTOGETHER SAFER
4. How well do we tackle abuse of vulnerable people, including domestic abuse, child exploitation and radicalisation?
Comparison to
Ref

Description

Latest
data

Period
covered

104

Building resilience to terrorism (selfassessment). Scored on level 1 (low) to
5 (high)

3

2017/18

105

Number of child sexual exploitation
referrals

169

2018

Period
target

12 months
earlier

Tracker

3

N/a

GREEN

Tracker

191

N/a

N/a

National
figure

North
East
figure

Data
updated
Nearest
Period
this
statistical covered if
quarter
neighbour different
No

Yes

Page 67

ALTOGETHER SAFER
Page 68

5. How do we keep our environment safe, including roads and waterways?
Comparison to

Ref

106

107

Description

Number of people killed or seriously
injured in road traffic accidents
-

Number of fatalities

-

Number of seriously injured

Number of children killed or seriously
injured in road traffic accidents

Latest
data

Period
covered

152
6

2018

Period
target

12 months
earlier

Tracker

204

N/a

GREEN
18

146

Number of fatalities

0

-

Number of seriously injured

16

North
East
figure

Nearest
statistical
neighbour

Period
covered if
different

Yes

186

16

-

National
figure

Data
updated
this
quarter

2018

Tracker

18

N/a

GREEN
0
18

Yes

Other additional relevant indicators
ALTOGETHER BETTER FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
1. Are children, young people and families in receipt of universal services appropriately supported?
Comparison to
Ref

40

41

Description

Alcohol specific hospital
admissions for under 18s
(rate per 100,000)
Young people aged 10-24
admitted to hospital as a
result of self-harm

Latest
data

Period
covered

56.2

2014/152016/17

400.8

2016/17

Period
target

12
months
earlier

National
figure

North
East
figure

Tracker

67.5

34.2

64.8

N/a

GREEN

RED

GREEN

Tracker

420.8

404.6

425.3

N/a

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

Nearest
statistical
neighbour

Period
covered
if
different

Data
updated
this
quarter
No

No

ALTOGETHER HEALTHIER
1. Are our services improving the health of our residents?
Comparison to
Ref

Description

Latest
data

Period
covered

Period
target

12
months
earlier

National
figure

North
East
figure

Nearest
statistical
neighbour

Period
covered
if
different

Suicide rate (deaths from
Tracker
12.6
9.6
10.8
suicide and injury of
76
12
2015-17
undetermined intent) per
GREEN
RED
RED
N/a
100,000 population
2. Are people needing adult social care supported to live safe, healthy and independent lives?
84
Page 69

% of individuals who achieved
their desired outcomes from
the adult safeguarding process

*unitary authorities

95.7

Apr-Dec
2018

Data
updated
this
quarter

Yes

Tracker

96.0

64.2

93.6*

N/a

AMBER

N/a

N/a

2017/18

Yes

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

Safer and Stronger Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
22 March 2019
Refresh of the Work Programme

Report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and
Partnerships
Electoral division(s) affected:
None

Purpose of the Report
1

To provide Safer and Stronger Communities Overview and Scrutiny
Committee (SSC OSC) with the opportunity to review and refresh the
work programme for 2019/20

Executive summary
2

SSC OSC refresh their work programme each year to reflect the
objectives and associated outcomes and actions identified within the
Council Plan for the Council’s Altogether Safer priority theme and the
Safe Durham Partnership Plan.

3

The Council Plan is set in the context of the Sustainable Community
Strategy which is itself going through a refresh process. This report
reflects the current Council Plan but recognises that a key priority in
both the current and the new Plan will be the Transformation
Programme.

4

The report and attached appendices provide information for members to
note activity undertaken by the Committee during 2018/19 and enable
discussion to suggest areas for review activity or agenda items to be
included within the Committee’s work programme for 2019/20.

Recommendations
5

SSC OSC is recommended to:
(a)

Note the information contained in the Council Plan 2016-2019
Altogether Safer theme (copy attached at Appendix 2).

Page 71

(b)

Note that a further report detailing the SSC OSC work
programme for 2019/20 will be submitted to the June 2019
meeting.

Background
6

7

The current Overview and Scrutiny Committees Work Programmes
focus on the priority areas identified within the context of the:


Council Plan



Cabinet’s Forward Plan of decisions



Sustainable Community Strategy



Safe Durham Partnership plans and strategies



performance data



changes in Government legislation

This year there is change underway in the policy context of the Council
as work is taking place to refresh the Sustainable Communities Strategy
(SCS). This has been undertaken because the SCS is now almost ten
years old. The new vision is expected to be in place in the summer and
will inform final versions of scrutiny work programmes. The current
Council Plan was developed in the context of the SCS and there will be
a chance for update once the new vision is agreed. However the current
Council Plan still applies.

Council Plan 2016 – 2019
8

Page 72

To help improve the performance of the Council, there are the following
six objectives within the Altogether Safer elements within the Council
Plan:


Reduce Anti-Social Behaviour



Protect vulnerable people from harm



Reduce re-offending



Alcohol and Substance misuse harm reduction



Implement measures to promote a safe environment



Embed the Think Family approach

9

Within the Council’s Altogether Safer priority theme, the focus is to work
with partner organisations, as part of the Safe Durham Partnership, to
tackle crime and disorder in County Durham.

10

The Council supports the Safe Durham Partnership Plan in its strategic
plan to deliver a day-to-day operational response to issues impacting on
our neighbourhoods. The Council will work with partners to involve the
community in tackling priorities, with the aim of creating a safer county
and contributing to an Altogether Better Durham.

11

In addition to providing a scrutiny role for activity of the council, the
Safer and Stronger Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee is
the designated Crime and Disorder Committee for the purposes of Part
3 of the Police and Justice Act 2006.

12

The Committee is therefore responsible for scrutinising the work of the
Safe Durham Partnership. Throughout 2018/19 the Committee has
reviewed and considered reports from the Safe Durham Partnership in
relation to its priority areas linked to the existing Safe Durham
Partnership Plan. It is to note that with exception of ‘Counter Terrorism
and Prevention of Violent Extremism, the current priority objectives are
aligned to the objectives within the Council Plan.

13

A refresh of the Safe Durham Partnership Plan is currently being
undertaken with draft plan to be presented to the committee. Following
publication of the Plan, the Committee’s work programme is to be
flexible to accommodate associated actions within the plan.

Current Work Programme
14

Appendix 3 to this report outlines activity during 2018/19 that the Safer
and Stronger Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee has
undertaken. This includes performance monitoring, in depth Scrutiny
review, reviews of progress against recommendations, workshops,
focused committee meetings and overview presentations in relation to
priority objectives and actions of the Council and Safe Durham
Partnership Plans.

Performance Monitoring
15

The Committee has considered and commented on quarterly
performance reports on ‘Altogether Safer’ performance indicators and
Council Plan objectives.

Page 73

Police and Crime Panel
16

The Committee has a joint working arrangement with the Durham Police
and Crime Panel (PCP) that is crucial to provide a communication
between the PCP and the Committee. This arrangement includes
receiving update reports from the PCP at each Committee meeting and
prior to undertaking an in-depth study into a crime and disorder issue,
discussion takes place between both the Chairs of the PCP and
Committee and Secretariat to avoid duplication of effort and resources.

Areas for consideration in the SSC OSC Work Programme
17

Appendix 3 contains activity undertaken during 2018/19 to which
Members may consider including progress reports within the 2019/20
work programme. Appendix 3 also identifies that items on Counter
Terrorism and Community and organisational resilience for emergency
preparedness, response are items to be considered for inclusion within
the Committee’s 2019/20 work programme.

18

With regard to review activity, work is ongoing with the joint review on
Children’s Residential Homes with Children and Young people’s OSC
and the Committee are to commence activity on development of a
County Durham road safety strategy. Looking ahead, Members are
invited to suggest potential topics for future review activity throughout
2019/20 and agree at its first meeting on 24th June 2019.

Main implications
Crime and Disorder
19

Information with this report aims to contribute to objectives within the
existing Council Plan and Safe Durham Partnership plan to reducing
crime and disorder.

Conclusion
20

The report and attached appendices provide information for members to
note and comment on activity undertaken during 2018/19 and suggest
areas to consider for review activity or agenda items within its work
programme for 2019/20.

21

Background papers


None

Other useful documents

Contact:

Page 74

None
Jonathan Slee

Tel: 03000 268142

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
None.

Finance
None.

Consultation
None.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
None.

Human Rights
None.

Crime and Disorder
Information with this report aims to contribute to objectives within the existing
Council Plan and Safe Durham Partnership plan to reducing crime and
disorder.

Staffing
None.

Accommodation
None.

Risk
The Overview and Scrutiny work programme is an important element of the
Council’s governance and risk management arrangements.

Procurement
None.

Page 75

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40

!"Introduced a programme of riverside safety improvements in Durham City in
partnership with Durham City Safety Group.

!"Implemented a Multi-Agency Intervention Service (MAIS) to provide tailormade support to help vulnerable and ‘at risk’ adults.

!"Durham has the lowest overall crime rate when compared to similar police
force areas (Figure S2).

!" The number of first time entrants to the youth justice system continues to reduce.
We have achieved an 82.9% reduction in first time entrants, from 1,129 in
2007/08 to 193 in 2014/15 (Figure S1).

!"Introduced an integrated drug and alcohol recovery service and developed
six recovery centres across the county, to provide consistent, high quality,
recovery-focused interventions for all people irrespective of age or level of
substance misuse.

!"4+;;:%/63"/$6"67/,29&7$-6(/":8 "/$6"*+%$,-"#667"1,9960".:--+(&/0"
Rehabilitation Company, which aims to reduce re-offending in the county,
protect the public and provide successful and effective rehabilitation
services for offenders.

!"The County Durham Youth Offending Service received an award for its work
on Speech, Language and Communication Needs, to support young people
who offend.

Achievements 2015-2016

Through the Altogether Safer theme, we work to achieve our vision for County
Durham where every adult and child will be, and will feel, safe. Working in
partnership is essential to achieving our vision and through the Safe Durham
Partnership we set priorities and plans for tackling crime and disorder,
demonstrating strong leadership, planning, performance management and
problem-solving to deliver positive outcomes to keep our communities safe.

Priority Theme Safer

0-

200 -

400 -

600 -

800 -

1000 -

1200 -

614

327

323

294

251

210

193

2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

1129

First time entrants to the Youth Justice System aged 10-17 2007/8 to 2014/15

Figure S1.

!"New, revised open water safety policy/procedures outlining how open water
risks are managed and promoting good practice across privately owned
open water sites.

!"Promoted a safer and healthier road environment by introducing Phase 1 of
part-time 20 mph speed limits on main and distributor roads near schools in
the county.

24

Appendix 2

Page 77

Page 78

Page 41

!"The Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015 places responsibility on
local authorities to work with partners to deliver ‘Prevent’: the government’s
strategy for preventing people being drawn into terrorism.

!"There is a need to reduce harm caused to the individual, families and
communities by alcohol and drugs. During April to September 2015, of
those in treatment, 51% reported using opiates, 43% using alcohol and 21%
using cannabis. The figure for those using opiates is higher than the national
rate of 34.7%. We will be working with partners to raise awareness, and use
licensing laws effectively to implement controls.

!"County Durham has a higher re-offending rate by adults and young
people at 27.3% compared to the national average (26.4%), although the
number of re-offenders in the county has reduced. Further developing
restorative approaches will enable those directly affected - offenders or
perpetrators, victims or family members and members of the community
- to communicate and agree how to deal with a particular incident and its
consequences.

!"Domestic abuse features in over one third of all initial child protection
conferences and continues to be the most common factor across all
localities.

!"We are working with partners to improve our support services for victims
of violence and sexual offences and identify areas for improvements in the
criminal justice system.

!"The number of incidents of anti-social behaviour have reduced during
2015/16. We will need to evaluate the effective Multi-Agency Intervention
Service (MAIS) to ensure that it is meeting its aims.

Issues to address

Priority Theme Safer

!"In order to ensure road safety around schools, we will continue to
implement the programme of part-time 20 mph speed limits on main and
distributor roads near schools in the county with the highest accident rates.

!"Riverside and water safety is a key issue with 56 incidents occurring in
Durham City between January 2010 and March 2015. The Durham City
Safety group made a number of improvements to Durham riverside and
further work will be undertaken countywide as part of the open water
programme on managing open water risks.

25

Page 42

Page 79

31 March
2011

31 March
2013

year ended

31 March
2012

County Durham
North East
England and Wales

31 March
2010

0-

10 -

20 -

30 -

40 -

50 -

60 -

70 -

85 -

90 -

Crime rate per 1,000 population 2010-2015

Figure S2.

Key Facts and Figures

31 March
2014

31 March
2015

The Safe Durham Partnership for County Durham
involves the Police, County Council, Fire and
Rescue Service, the NHS and Probation Services,
who work together to improve community safety.

People received help with drug/alcohol problems at
treatment centres in 2014/15

3,300

Reduction in the number of adults and young
people who offend in a year in County Durham
since 2007/08 (8,000 to 5,300)

2,700

Reduction in crime in County Durham since 2009

19%

link to
Safe Durham
Partnership
Plan

link to
Alcohol Harm
Reduction
Strategy

26

Page 80

Page 43

Safeguarding
children and adults
whose circumstances
make them vulnerable
and protect them
from avoidable
harm

Prevent domestic
abuse and sexual
violence and reduce
the associated harm

Reduced incidence
of anti-social
behaviour and low
level crime

Increased public
confidence in the
ability of partners to
deal with crime and
anti-social
behaviour

Community
and organisational
resilience for
emergency
preparedness,
response and
recovery

Protect
vulnerable
people from
harm

Reduce
anti-social
behaviour

Prevent
repeat offending

Reduce
re-offending

Altogether
Safer

Reduced harm
caused by alcohol to
individuals, families
and communities

Alcohol and
substance
misuse harm
reduction

Reduced harm
caused by
drugs/substances

Develop a safer road
environment

Improved
understanding of
open water safety

Improved
safety in the home

The most vulnerable
families are diverted
from offending and
anti-social behaviour

Implement
measures to
promote a safe
environment

Embed the
Think Family
approach

Moving Forward - Key Areas of Focus for 2016-2019

27

Objective 3
Reduce re-offending

Prevent repeat offending
We will aim to reduce re-offending by appropriately
targeting our resources, ensuring we listen and
respond to young people and their families and
making sure that volunteering is a key part of the
work we undertake with young people and victims.

Objective 2
Protect vulnerable people from harm

Prevent domestic abuse and sexual violence and
reduce the associated harm
We will work with partners to improve our support
services for victims and identify areas for
improvements in the criminal justice system.
Safeguarding children and adults whose
circumstances make them vulnerable and
protect them from avoidable harm
We will:
!"H:%="I&/$";,%/(6%7"/:"369&'6%"/$6"):'6%(-6(/Z7"
strategy for preventing people being drawn
into terrorism by establishing a multi-agency
assessment panel to provide support and
intervention.
!"*69&'6%"/%,&(&()"/:"7/,88B"&(59+3&()"75$::97""/:"%,&76"
awareness of the ‘Prevent’ Duty
!"E',9+,/6"/$6"68865/&'6"F+9/&C<)6(50"@(/6%'6(/&:("
Service (MAIS) to ensure that it is meeting its aims.
Community and organisational resilience
for emergency preparedness, response and
recovery
We will work with local communities to develop and
ensure Community Resilience plans are in place,
to minimise the damage from emergencies such as
flooding.

/#%0+$1+*'(23&"%'%4#-*+#%+''"#'56+'$3"&"5.'4,'
partners to deal with crime and anti-social
behaviour
We will:
!D%:3+56","4,86"*+%$,-"D,%/(6%7$&;"D9,("/:"
describe how responsible authorities (including the
council, Durham Constabulary and the Fire and
Rescue Service) will work together to tackle crime
and disorder in the county.
!H:%="I&/$";,%/(6%7"/:"36'69:;",";9,("/:"3&7-,(/96"
organised crime groups thereby reducing the risk of
harm to the local community.
Reduced incidence of anti-social behaviour and
low level crime
We will implement a programme to reduce anti-social
behaviour particularly in public open spaces.

Moving Forward - Key Areas of Focus for 2016-2019

Objective 1
Reduce anti-social behaviour

Page 44

Page 81

28

Objective 6
Embed the Think Family approach

The most vulnerable families are diverted from
offending and anti-social behaviour
We will:
!*69&'6%"D$,76"L":8 ":+%"4/%:()6%">,-&9&67"
programme to families to help them address the
complex issues they face such as children not
attending school or anti-social behaviour.
!"E-263"%67/:%,/&'6",;;%:,5$67"&("/$6"4/%:()6%"
Families Programme by training and developing
staff in approaches for early intervention when
working with families to prevent them from
offending.

Objective 5
Implement measures to promote a safe
environment
Develop a safer road environment
We will continue to implement our programme
to introduce 20mph speed limits on main and
distributor roads around schools with the highest
accident rates.
Improved understanding of open water safety
We will implement our water safety programme
inluding management of risk of public open
spaces near open water and the promotion of good
practice across privately owned water sites.
Improved safety in the home
We will:
!"H:%="I&/$";,%/(6%7"/:"+(36%/,=6"&(&/&,/&'67"/:"
reduce doorstep crime, rogue traders, and the
supply of counterfeit produces.
!"O+&93&()":("/$6"(,/&:(,9";&9:/B"6G;9:%6":;;:%/+(&/&67"
with the County Durham and Darlington Fire and
Rescue Service to engage a wide range of people
including those who are isolated and vulnerable to
support them to improve safety within the home.
!"E(7+%6"5$,()67",%&7&()"8%:-"/$6"4-:=6",(3"
Carbon Monoxide Alarm (England) Regulations
2015 are incorporated into operational practices.

Reduced harm caused by alcohol to individuals,
families and communities
We will work with partners to deliver a number of
initiatives to reduce the damage caused by
alcohol, including use of licensing laws to control
availability and the targeting of underage drinkers.
Reduced harm caused by drugs/substances
We will work with partners to prevent harm, restrict
supply, minimise the impact of drugs and build
recovery within communities by raising awareness
of emerging trends with communities and partners.

Moving Forward - Key Areas of Focus for 2016-2019

Objective 4
Alcohol and substance misuse harm reduction

Page 82

Page 45

29

Appendix 3

Objective
Reduce Anti-Social
Behaviour

Council Plan 2016-2019 actions


Increased public confidence in the
ability of partners to deal with crime
and anti-social behaviour



Reduced incidence of anti-social
behaviour and low level crime





Prevent domestic abuse and sexual
violence and reduce the associated
harm.



Prevent domestic abuse and sexual violence
and reduce associated harm.




Safeguarding children and adults
whose circumstances make them
vulnerable and protect them from
avoidable harm.

Ensure that all victims of domestic abuse and
sexual violence have access to the right help
and support throughout the criminal justice
process and that services are available to
address their needs.



Protect Vulnerable
People from harm



Page 83

Reduce reoffending

Safe Durham Partnership Plan actions



Community and organisational
resilience for emergency
preparedness, response and recovery

Prevent repeat offending

Increase public confidence in the ability of
partners to deal with crime and anti-social
behaviour issues
Reduce incidence of anti-social behaviour
and low level crime



Improve the criminal justice response to
tackling domestic abuse, sexual violence and
sexual exploitation.



To pursue perpetrators of domestic abuse
through the criminal justice system and
ensure they face up to the implications of
their actions.



Reduce the impact of hate crime



Prevent inter-generational offending.











Committee Activity
2018/19
Local Multi Agency Problem Solving
(LMAPS) Mapping
Safe Durham Partnership Board
Arson and deliberate fires in the East
Durham area
Recorded Crime workshop
Organised Crime
Hate Crime Action Group
ERASE (Joint meeting with CYP OSC)
Joint Targeted Area Inspection (JTAI)
Domestic Abuse Joint activity with CYP
OSC
Children’s Residential Care Homes –
Joint review activity with CYP OSC

 National Probation Service
 Durham Tees Valley Community

Appendix 3
Page 84

Alcohol and
substance misuse
harm reduction



Reduced harm caused by alcohol to
individuals, families and communities



Reduced harm caused by
drugs/substances

Prevent repeat offending.



Reduce the harm caused by alcohol to
communities by tackling alcohol related
crime and disorder and vulnerability.



Reduce the harm caused by
drugs/substances – through prevention,
restricting supply and building recovery.

 Drug & Alcohol Recovery Service

Develop a safer road environment
Improved understanding of open water
safety
Improved safety in the home

 Open Water Safety
 County Durham Road Safety
Partnership
 County Durham & Darlington Fire &
Rescue Service Integrated Risk
Management Plan
 20 mph Speed Limits
 Home Safety, Safe and Wellbeing Visit
– progress on review
recommendations
 CYP OSC lead on this area

Implement
measures to
promote a safe
environment





Develop a safer road environment
Improved Safety in the home
Improved understanding of open
water safety.




Embed the Think
Family approach



The most vulnerable families are
diverted from offending and antisocial behaviour.



The most vulnerable families are diverted
from offending and anti-social behaviour.



Implement CONTEST (national strategy)



Challenge extremism and intolerance

Counter Terrorism
and prevention of
violent extremism
(SDP Plan only)

Rehabilitation Company
 County Durham Youth Offending
Service – Youth Justice Plan 2018/19
 Alcohol and its Demand on Emergency
Services – progress on review
recommendations





